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® (0905)
[English]

The Clerk of the Committee (Mr. Paul Cardegna): Hon-
ourable members of the committee, I see a quorum.

I must inform members that the clerk of the committee can only
receive motions for the election of the chair. The clerk cannot re-
ceive other types of motions, and cannot entertain points of order or
participate in debate.

[Translation]

We can now proceed to the election of the chair.

Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the chair must be a member
of the official opposition.
[English]

I am now ready to receive motions for the chair.

Mr. Tom Lukiwski (Moose Jaw—Lake Centre—Lanigan,
CPC): That will be our side.

Voices: Oh, oh!

Mr. Kelly McCauley (Edmonton West, CPC): I will put for-
ward a motion that we choose Mr. Tom Lukiwski as chair.

The Clerk: Mr. McCauley has moved that Mr. Lukiwski be the
chair of the committee.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: This is despite my reservations, and I'd
like to put that on the record as well.
Some hon. members: Oh, oh!

The Clerk: Your reservations are noted.

Are there any other nominations for the position of chair?
Is it agreed?

Some hon. members: Agreed.

The Clerk: It is agreed that Mr. Lukiwski is elected chair of the
committee. I'd like to congratulate him and invite him to take the
chair here.

Some hon. members: Hear, hear!

The Chair (Mr. Tom Lukiwski (Moose Jaw—Lake Centre—
Lanigan, CPC)): Let me first offer my most abject apologies for
being late. It's not a very sterling way to start off a new chairman-
ship, but thank you very much. It's good to see so many of you fa-
miliar faces again. It's very good to see some new faces here.

For those of you who don't know me, I am Tom Lukiwski. I've
been a member of Parliament now for six terms. This is my second
go-around as chair of this committee. For new members, I can as-
sure you that this is a very good committee to be on. There are
some very bright and industrious people, and we've done, I think,
some excellent work in years past. We've written a few very good
reports, and I look forward to receiving more good reports and
good work from this committee.

Once again, my apologies, but thank you so much for your confi-
dence in me. I'll try to live up to it as we move forward.

I think the first order of business is to elect a couple of vice-
chairs.

Mr. Matthew Green (Hamilton Centre, NDP): I have a point
of order on that.

I'm wondering if it might please this committee that we defer this
until after PROC has met and allow its process to take place. If we
have the will of committee to do that, it might allow us to get into
our regular business, after those decisions are made there.

The Chair: Thank you very much, and it's a good point. PROC
is still seized with this and they have been discussing it. My under-
standing is that certain committees have already gone forward and
elected some vice-chairs, perhaps not all. It's up to the will of this
committee whether we wish to elect vice-chairs at this point in
time, defer that decision or whether we move on and try to deal
with something like routine proceedings.

Mr. McCauley.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Would we not be able to select vice-chairs
now, and then if PROC decides to go forward, we could add the
other one?

The Chair: For the benefit of everyone—I think everyone here
is aware of it—some of the committees have elected vice-chairs but
deferred the decision for a third vice-chair until PROC brings down
their decision, if that is going to happen in certain committees.

If you would like, we can do that. We can elect the two vice-
chairs and leave the possible election of a third vice-chair until our
colleagues at procedure and House affairs have finished their delib-
erations. Would that make sense?

An hon. member: Yes.

The Chair: In that case, we'll go forward with the election of the
two vice-chairs, and we'll open this for nominations.
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Mr. Majid Jowhari (Richmond Hill, Lib.): Mr. Chair, I'd like
to nominate Francis Drouin for the vice-chair position on the gov-
ernment side.

The Chair: First vice-chair?

The name of Mr. Francis Drouin has been put forward. Are there
any further nominations?

(Motion agreed to)
The Chair: Congratulations, Francis.

Now we go for a second vice-chair.

The Clerk: If the committee wants to, yes.

Pursuant to Standing Order 106(2), the second vice-chair must be
a member of an opposition party other than the official opposition.

The Chair: In that case, we'll open for nominations.

Mr. Matthew Green: In what might be an unorthodox way, I'd
like to put my own name forward. I'd be remiss if I didn't, and I
don't actually have somebody to do that on my behalf, but I would
like to put my name forward for the second vice-chair.

The Chair: Certainly, this is within the parameters and the con-
text of what we do here, so that's not out of order at all.

Are there any further nominations?

I'm sorry, I should know this, my bad for this. Could we have, for
the record, your name?

Mr. Matthew Green: For the record, my name is Matthew
Green from the wonderful riding of Hamilton Centre.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Green.
Mr. Matthew Green's name is put forward as second vice-chair.

Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin (Glengarry—Prescott—Russell, Lib.): [
would like to nominate Madame Vignola.

The Clerk: The Standing Orders allow that in the event that
there are more than two candidates for a position of chair or vice-
chair, the vote has to be conducted by secret ballot.

The only thing I would ask now is whether there any further
nominations for the position of second vice-chair.

Seeing none, we're going to conduct a secret ballot election. My
colleague and I are going to prepare the ballots and hand them out
to you. We will have a ballot box; then we will walk it around, and
everybody can put the ballots in.

If you will just bear with us, we will get that ready right now.

The Chair: We will suspend for a couple of minutes until the
ballots are prepared.

* 10 (Pause)

® (0915)

The Chair: I will now call the meeting back to order. My under-
standing is that the ballots have been collected and tabulated.

Mr. Clerk, could you give us the results, please?

The Clerk: Having tabulated the votes, I declare Julie Vignola to
have received the majority of votes.

The Chair: Now, with that concluded, colleagues, I will confer
with my clerk again, but I believe the next order of business would
be to adopt some routine motions.

Most of you are familiar with this process, but for the benefit of
some of our newer colleagues, what we are about to do is establish
what we call routine motions concerning how we conduct our nor-
mal day-to-day business, particularly when there are witnesses in
front of us.

For example, in previous Parliaments we have had a system
whereby, as an example, witnesses before this committee would
have a maximum of 10 minutes to speak, at which time questions
would follow. Sometimes we've had a seven-minute allowance for
questions for the first round of questioning, followed by five min-
utes in the second round, and so on.

This Parliament is a bit unique since 2015, inasmuch as we have
four registered parties rather than three. In the last Parliament, the
routine proceedings for this committee gave seven minutes in the
first round, allowing two members of the governing party to be
heard, I believe, then one from the official opposition and one from,
at that time, the third party, the NDP. In the second round there was
one from the governing party, one from the opposition and, I be-
lieve, a two-minutes slot for the NDP.

In this case, since we have four parties, we can establish our own
routine motions.

I am going to ask the clerk to give us a couple of examples, be-
fore we go to Francis—or I'll ask the clerk eventually—of some of
the routine motions that have been adopted by other committees,
and perhaps we will have some suggestions as to the routine mo-
tions and speaking order in this Parliament.

Francis, the floor is yours.

Mr. Francis Drouin: We have a few routine motions that we
would like to suggest, and I have copies for committee members in
both official languages.

The Chair: We'll distribute them. I'll ask everyone to take a look
at them, and then we'll have a brief discussion, led by our first vice-
chair, Mr. Drouin.

Colleagues, I believe everyone has received a copy of the pro-
posed routine motions that Mr. Drouin has distributed. Since Mr.
Drouin was the one who brought forward this proposal, I would ask
him to lead us in the discussion.
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Francis, perhaps you could take us through it point by point.
® (0920)

Mr. Francis Drouin: I certainly can, but I would defer to my fel-
low committee members whether or not there are currently any ob-
jections to those motions. The one on the analysts speaks for itself.
Unless we want to write our own reports, I am pretty sure we would
appreciate having the analysts here.

Mr. McCauley, do you have...?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Do we do these individually or the whole
thing?

Mr. Francis Drouin: The whole thing. It would be easier to pro-
ceed.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: The only thing I would suggest is that,
under the motion on “Independent Members—Clause-by-Clause”,
it goes (a), (b), (c), and then (a) again. But the second (a) is the op-
portunity for an independent member to “make brief representa-
tions” in support of their own amendments. The only thing I would
ask your opinion of is whether we should quantify what “brief” is,
so we don't get someone thinking that “brief” means 15 minutes, as
opposed to my own way of thinking that “brief” is three minutes.

I'm just looking for feedback from you folks.

The Chair: If I may, Mr. McCauley, for clarification the conven-
tion has been that it's up to the discretion of the chair. There's never
been a finite or a....

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Okay. If we stick with that I'm perfectly
comfortable with it.

The Chair: Yes, Mr. Green.

Mr. Matthew Green: There is one I want to address, namely, on
reduced quorum. I am wondering if we could take a look at that to
include two members from the opposition and two members from
the government.

Are we going line by line or were you looking to adopt it as a
whole package?

The Chair: Yes, Mr. Drouin had suggested that we look at it as a
whole. Perhaps now it might be better to just go item by item if
there are some specific items.

Mr. Francis Drouin: We can. We're ready to entertain amend-
ments; if Mr. Green has certain amendments we can certainly enter-
tain them. After that, if there are no issues with the other routine
motions, then we can adopt them as a block. I'm fine to go through
them one by one. I don't have objections.

The Chair: If everyone has had enough opportunity to read the
proposed routine motions, why don't we try to see if there are spe-
cific amendments that one would like to propose? We can deal with
them then vote as a block.

Mr. Green, you have a question under reduced quorum.
Mr. Matthew Green: Yes, I move:

That the Chair be authorized to hold meetings to receive evidence and publish
evidence when a quorum is not present, provided that at least four (4) members
are present, including two (2) members from the opposition and two (2) mem-
bers from the government

I believe the rest would be in line with what has already been
presented.

The Chair: Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin: From our side we're okay with that particu-
lar amendment.

The Chair: Seeing no opposition, do we have agreement?

(Motion agreed to)
The Chair: Adopted. Thank you.

Mr. Matthew Green: And two of the government, that is cor-
rect.

The Chair: And two of the government, yes.

Good catch, Steve.
Mr. Francis Drouin: No wonder you're PS.

The Chair: That's why you get the big bucks.

Are there any further amendments to the proposed routine mo-
tions?

Madame Vignola.

[Translation]

Mrs. Julie Vignola (Beauport—Limoilou, BQ): I don't have an
amendment, but being new to this place, I'd like to take the time to
go through each one. I know it's longer and not very pleasant, but
it'll go quickly if there aren't any amendments. It will help me get
everything straight.

[English]

The Chair: It's a fair point, and I do want to make sure that all
new members in particular have an opportunity to participate fully.

So why don't we do that, Francis? It should only take us a couple
of extra moments. I think we can breeze through them fairly quick-
ly because many of them are fairly self-explanatory.

Starting with “Analysts”, go ahead Francis.

[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin: We put forward the motion on the analysts
because we aren't the ones who write the reports. We need analysts
for that. They are the institutional memory. In fact, at the back, I
see one who is this committee's institutional memory.

That is why we moved that the committee retain the services of
analysts, who will support us in our work.

[English]

The Chair: All those in favour of the motion on analysts as writ-
ten?

(Motion agreed to)
The Chair: Thank you.

Under the subtopic of “Subcommittee on Agenda and Proce-
dure”, go ahead, Mr. Drouin.
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Mr. Francis Drouin: Once again, we have operated with sub-
committees. In the past, Mr. Lukiwski, we've operated through sub-
committees, and we've operated through non-subcommittees. We
had a good working relationship with this particular group that we
had in the past. It's just whether we choose subcommittees to pro-
vide an agenda to committee. Again, this is very routine with other
committees.

The Chair: Again, for the benefit of our new members, most
other committees do have subcommittees. From time to time the
subcommittee, in whatever form it has taken, was unable to come
up with a clear consensus on a path forward, at which time the chair
would take back the discussion and some of the questions to the full
committee for consideration. But the subcommittee is a method in
which we can, many times, set agenda items without bothering the
entire committee, and then it comes to the fully committee and
we're in full flight.

Again, all in favour of the motion on the subcommittee on agen-
da and procedure as proposed?

(Motion agreed to)

Mr. Drouin, on “Reduced Quorum”, we have an amendment that
we've already passed.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Exactly.

The Chair: Next is “Questioning of Witnesses”.
[Translation]

Mr. Francis Drouin: The chair referred to procedure. The idea
behind this motion is to give witnesses appearing before the com-
mittee 10 minutes for their opening statements. Even then, it will
depend on how many witnesses we have. It is up to the chair to de-
termine whether we have enough time to hear from all the witness-
es. It also deals with the number of rounds of questioning and the
time allocated to questioners from each party.

The Chair: Ms. Vignola, you have the floor.

Mrs. Julie Vignola: If I understand correctly, then, each party
has six minutes during the first round.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Yes.
[English]

The Chair: Again, for the benefit of some of our newer mem-
bers, particularly the representatives from the Bloc and the NDP,
for your information, in the previous Parliament, in the second
round, the representative for the NDP had two minutes. This is ac-
tually giving you an extra 30 seconds each—

Mr. Matthew Green: That's very gracious.

The Chair: —and reducing the amount of time from the govern-
ment or the opposition.

Mr. Matthew Green: A lot can happen in 30 seconds.

The Chair: It certainly can.
Do we have any further discussion?

All in favour of the motion on questioning of witnesses as pro-
posed?

(Motion agreed to)

The Chair: Mr. Drouin.
[Translation)

Mr. Francis Drouin: The next motion deals with document dis-
tribution, and this is as much for my anglophone colleagues as my
francophone colleagues. It is important to make sure that all docu-
ments are available in both official languages.

[English]
So it's making sure, when we distribute documents to our commit-
tee members, that they're in both official languages.

The Chair: Again, for the benefit of our new members, from
time to time we've had witnesses appear before this committee with
not only their oral testimony but a written brief to accompany that.
The odd time, they've only brought those written briefs in one offi-
cial language. We are unable to distribute documents that are in on-
ly one official language, so we must require that any documents for
distribution to this committee be in both official languages.

Is there a question?

Yes, Madame.
[Translation]

Mrs. Julie Vignola: Must we give 24 hours' or 48 hours' notice
of documents to be distributed?

[English]

The Chair: We do, but it's not germane to this particular item on
the routine proceedings. For example, if there are motions brought
forward, presented by members of this committee, there are some
timelines associated with this. This is simply to deal with the docu-
ments that we plan to distribute for whatever reason.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: We'll cover it later.
Mrs. Julie Vignola: Okay.

The Chair: All in favour of the motion on documents distribu-
tion as presented?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings))

The Chair: Francis, please continue.

Mr. Francis Drouin: We move on to working meals.

I'm actually surprised that Mr. McCauley didn't put an amend-
ment in there to include doughnuts.

Voices: Oh, oh!

Mr. Francis Drouin: Committee hours will be changing in the
future, as they always do. It's up to us to decide what types of food
we want.

Again, it's just a routine motion to allow us to proceed, if we
choose to.
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The Chair: Francis is right that committee times change from
parliament to parliament. This committee is now meeting on Tues-
days and Thursdays from 8:45 a.m. to 10:45 a.m. Other committees
meet in the late afternoon. Some meet in mid-afternoon. Depending
on the time of day, from time to time the clerk, on the advice of the
members of this committee, determines whether meals are to be
served and what they would be—sandwiches, full meals, hot meals,
breakfast meals or evening meals. If we just leave it like this, in
consultation with our clerk we'll make determinations as seen fit
when it comes to the type of food you will be served.

If you have any complaints, you can complain to the clerk.
Voices: Oh, oh!

The Chair: All in favour of working meals as proposed?
(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings))

Next is witnesses' expenses.

Mr. Drouin.
® (0930)

Mr. Francis Drouin: Again, this is very routine. We want Cana-
dians to participate in our studies. All committees often pay for ex-
penses for them to either show up here or move into a special room
when they're a lot further from Ottawa and can't be here physically.

The Chair: Once again, we will continue to follow this practice.
We have been very conscious, at least at this committee level, of
trying to curb expenses and not incur unnecessary expenses. It
means, for example, that from time to time, or maybe even as a rou-
tine practice, rather than fly witnesses in to appear publicly we try
to establish video conferences and try to keep the costs down. In all
cases, we do want to make sure that witnesses who have been re-
quested to appear before this committee have the ability to do so,
and our committee will incur the expenses for those appearances.

All in favour of the motion on witnesses' expenses as proposed?
(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])
The Chair: Thank you.

Continue, please, Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin: The next one is for staff at in camera meet-
ings. I suppose it makes the chair's job much easier when we re-
quire only one staff member per office, and one from the House of-
ficer's office, to be present when we have in camera meetings. Of-
ten we will meet and we will have witnesses. Sometimes we'll have
an in camera business meeting shortly after, so sometimes you can
see some lurking around.

I'm sure this makes your job a lot easier, Mr. Chair.

The Chair: There has been the odd occasion when we've had re-
quests from some members of this committee, whether on the gov-
ernment side or the opposition side, to relax the rule to allow more
than one staffer. We've dealt with that on an individual, one-by-one
basis, but if we can adopt this, that would ensure we have some
continuity. One staff member probably should be sufficient for each
party and each member here.

Do we have agreement on the motion on staff at in camera meet-
ings?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The Chair: Mr. Drouin, next is in camera meeting transcripts.

Mr. Francis Drouin: The goal of this particular motion is to
make sure that what happens at in camera meetings stays in camera.
The clerk always has a copy of the transcript. Again, this is just to
make sure that the information provided in camera stays confiden-
tial and inside those four walls.

The Chair: All in favour?
(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

The next one is the notice of motions. This is something that [
would ask particularly new members to listen to attentively.

Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Again, it's very routine in terms of how
we've operated on this committee. It's 48 hours' notice. You may
want to pay attention to what 48 hours' notice means in this com-
mittee. I can read it if you want, but I think it's pretty self-explana-

tory.

The Chair: All I would ask is that you understand the notice re-
quirements and the deadline for filing notices, which is 4 p.m.

Mr. Aboultaif.

Mr. Ziad Aboultaif (Edmonton Manning, CPC): I have a
quick question. Can you specify whether it's 48 working hours or
48 hours?

A voice: It's two sleeps.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: But before 4 p.m.
The Chair: That's correct.

All in favour?
(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])

Mr. Drouin, on independent members. We've dealt with this.
Mr. Francis Drouin: We have.

The Chair: Are there any further amendments?

Mr. Green.
Mr. Matthew Green: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have a motion re-

garding in camera proceedings.
I move:

That any motion to go in camera should be debatable and amendable, and that
the committee may only meet in camera for the following purposes:

a) to discuss administrative matters of the committee
b) a draft report

¢) briefings concerning national security;
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And furthermore, minutes of in camera meetings should reflect on the results of
all votes taken by the committee while in camera, including how each member
voted when a recorded vote is requested.

® (0935)

The Chair: If I may interject, I'm going to make a recommenda-
tion that we consider this, although we've already passed the in
camera meetings routine motion as presented. However, in defer-
ence to you, Mr. Green, you are a new member, and you have pre-
sented this in both official languages I presume?

Mr. Matthew Green: I do appreciate that. The reason I didn't
bring it up as an amendment at that particular time is that it related
to staff at in camera meetings and in camera meeting transcripts. It
wasn't presented as an in camera topic, per se.

The Chair: That is a separate motion, so we can't consider that.

I would ask all members if they've had an opportunity to read the
proposed change, and to make comments if they wish.

Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin: I have a couple issues with (a), (b), and (¢).
When we're discussing administrative matters, does that include
witnesses?

The other point I'd like to make is on confidentiality. That is not
reflected in the motion. We as a committee may choose.... For ex-
ample, if we have whistleblowers come before the committee, they
may not want to be portrayed in public. That's not necessarily a
matter of national security, but it's a matter of confidentiality, so I
would ask that we include confidentiality in there as well.

The Chair: Francis's point is fairly germane, because in the last
Parliament we completed a study on whistleblower protection. On
several occasions, we've had witnesses come forward wanting to
give testimony, but who have been quite concerned that their
anonymity might be compromised. Therefore, we've made sure to
grant confidentiality and anonymity to those witnesses who so de-
sired. It would not be a bad thing to include that in the body of this
motion.

Are there any other comments?

Mrs. Block.

Mrs. Kelly Block (Carlton Trail—Eagle Creek, CPC): Would
the clerk be able to comment on how this would impact our meet-
ings procedurally, and if in fact this is something that other commit-
tees are contemplating adopting?

The Chair: Mr. Clerk.

The Clerk: This motion has been moved in certain other com-
mittees. Certain committees have adopted it. I believe some have
adopted it even with amendments made to it.

The question I have about this is where it states that “in camera
meetings should reflect on the results of all votes taken by the com-
mittee while in camera”. I'd like some clarification from Mr. Green,
if he could provide it. What level of detail does he or the committee
suggest that should include? For example, when the committee
drafts a report, if there are 100 paragraphs in the draft report, and
the committee takes a decision on each and every paragraph, is that
the kind of information you would want revealed in the minutes?

Usually, with a draft report, even if it's considered in public—
though it's rare but it has happened—we don't reveal all of that in-
formation. My concern is that if we were to do that for a report with
100 paragraphs, it might slow down the process of the committee
working its way through the report, because in each paragraph,
there are....

One potential amendment motion could be “with the exception
of proceedings on a draft report”, for example.

An hon. member: Sure.

The Clerk: Is that an amendment you would be amenable to?

Mr. Matthew Green: Yes, it sounds like a very practical and
reasonable amendment.

The Clerk: As for admissibility, we haven't heard any other is-
sues on admissibility come up with this motion. It's more the con-
cerns that members have brought up, such as some issues that Mr.
Drouin raised. If the committee is going to consider making another
modification to personal information, for example, I would appreci-
ate it if you could flesh out how you want that to read in the motion
so I would know what to put in the minutes in this case.

Mr. Drouin, did you have any thought as to text on that?

Mr. Francis Drouin: Mr. Clerk, like you, I do have some ques-
tions about the results of votes if we're moving to go in camera but
we're publishing votes.

Again, it goes back to, for instance, selecting witnesses. We
might not agree on all witnesses, but procedurally, how would you
publish that information?

We don't have a lot of time in committee, and we sometimes
have to select certain witnesses we want to see. I just don't know
how that would work.

® (0940)

The Clerk: On that point, we've had some discussions in our of-
fices with my colleagues on that. I think we've arrived a fairly com-
mon sense consensus.

The committee, first of all, can give any instruction it wants to
us, the clerks, as to what we're going to put in the minutes. We have
a tradition where, with in camera, we do not reveal anything except
decisions that are taken positively by the committee, things that the
committee has agreed to. If the committee disagrees with some-
thing or defeats a motion, traditionally we haven't put that in.

The committee is well within its rights to issue instruction to me
as the clerk as to what it wants as the minutes, and this is part of the
aspect of this motion. However, if we are going to produce the re-
sults of a vote, it strikes me as common sense that we would in-
clude what the subject matter of that decision was.

To put in the minutes that a decision was taken, and x members
voted this way and other members voted another way, without
putting what the substance of that is wouldn't make any sense.
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To my mind, this essentially makes the minutes of an in camera
meeting exactly the same as those of a public meeting. If that's
what the committee wants, that's the will of the committee and
that's fine, and we'll do that. However, committee members might
want to consider that one of the reasons that in camera minutes
have always not reflected that information was to preserve the
anonymity and the confidentiality of the discussions taking place
therein. This is an issue for members to decide in terms of how they
want to proceed on it.

The only ramification we see is that it is essentially rendering in
camera minutes the same as those of a public meeting. Again, the
committee can do that, but that's at the committee's discretion.

The Chair: We will first go to Mr. Green.

Mr. Matthew Green: I realize that I put the motion without real-
ly speaking to it. Obviously, this was passed in PROC in the last
Parliament. We're asking for a spirit of transparency and open gov-
ernment here. I just think, amenable to any additions, this would be
a great step forward for us to provide the greatest amount of open-
ness and transparency to the public.

The Chair: Thank you, Mr. Green.

My understanding is that this final paragraph was not included in
any of the PROC from the last Parliament, so this in fact would be
a new procedure to be followed if this committee so agrees.

Mr. Drouin.

Mr. Francis Drouin: I understand where the member is coming
from, the spirit of openness and transparency, but it creates a lot
more problems that I don't understand yet. I think someone, or
PROC, should look at this further before we make a decision on
that particular paragraph, because if we put that in there, then who
makes the decision about whether to publish in camera meetings
and subjects, and what's the point of going in camera?

We're not going to support this particular paragraph. We're will-
ing to entertain the in camera proceedings, but adding an amend-
ment for confidentiality.

The Chair: Colleagues, I suggest, then, so we don't completely
throw this out or adopt it, that we adjourn the debate on this partic-
ular motion at this point in time. Number one, that will give our
colleagues at PROC an opportunity to examine it and perhaps make
comment and some suggestions; and if we adjourn the debate now,
we can always come back to this at some future time.

There is agreement to adjourn the debate on this particular mo-
tion. Thank you.

Mr. Green, you also have a proposal on quorum.
The Clerk: That was the one they dealt with already.

Mr. Matthew Green: Just as a point there, as I was following
along, based on my past experience, I tried to chime in at the appro-
priate time. That's why I put the item on quorum when we dealt
with it originally.

The Chair: That's fine. It was an order. We dealt with it appro-
priately and we will come back to this. We'll give all our colleagues
a chance to perhaps determine whether or not they're in favour of
this.

Now, we we're on...?
The Clerk: No. We're done, actually.

The Chair: I think we're complete. Was the last one on notice of
motions?

Now I'll entertain a motion to adopt the amended routine motions
as a package.

All in favour?
(Motions as amended agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings])
That's done. Thank you very much.

As you know, we are regularly scheduled for meetings every
Tuesday and Thursday. At this point, we don't have any proposals
for study. I will inform the committee that we know there will be
some items coming before this committee that we are obliged to
deal with on an immediate basis.

Let's invite the analysts to the table.
Some hon. members: Hear, hear!

The Chair: Before we proceed any further, I'll ask our analysts
to introduce themselves and give us a brief background of their ex-
perience as analysts in Parliament.

Raphaélle, please.
® (0945)

Ms. Raphaélle Deraspe (Committee Researcher): Thank you,
Mr. Chair.

My name is Raphaélle Deraspe. I've been with the library for
nine years now and on this particular committee for over five years.

We have some documentation on the variety of services that we
can offer this committee.

[Translation]

We can provide you with assistance from the beginning to the
end of your study. We even help you choose study topics. We also
draft briefing notes, which you receive 24 hours before the start of
the meeting.

Now I'll let my colleague, Mr. van den Berg, introduce himself
and tell you a bit more about briefing notes.

[English]

Mr. Ryan van den Berg (Analyst): My name is Ryan van den
Berg. I have been with the library for almost three years now, and
this is the first time I've sat on a committee.

I would also like to add to my colleague's points that all the ser-
vices we offer to the committee are impartial and confidential. You
can feel free to come to us with any matters that you might have
regarding the subject matter of the committee.

The Chair: Thank you very much.
Mr. McCauley.
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Mr. Kelly McCauley: I'll just add for Ryan and Raphaélle that
we've had about eight other analysts over these five years, so we'll
try to get to know you before you disappear like the others.

The Chair: Thank you, colleagues.

As for what I'm going to suggest since we don't have any work
agenda yet, | was about to say that we will be having some business
coming before this committee that we'll have to deal with immedi-
ately, most primarily the estimates, both the supplementaries and
the mains. I expect we'll be dealing with those in very short order.

It has been the custom and convention of most committees, in-
cluding this one, that should any government legislation be adopted
in the House and referred to the appropriate committee, that takes
precedence. In other words, even if we're in the middle of a study
of some topic and a piece of government legislation comes forward,
we drop the study and move to the government legislation immedi-
ately. Likewise, we deal with the supplementaries and main esti-
mates with some immediacy, as opposed to other studies.

Now, the clerk has pointed out to me that pursuant to Standing
Order 81(5), the supplementary estimates (B) for the fiscal year
ending March 31 have been deemed referred to several standing
committees, OGGO being one of them.

The Clerk: We have, I think, four votes that are referred to OG-
GO

The Chair: We have four votes on the supplementaries: Public
Works, Shared Services Canada and the Treasury Board Secretariat.
We'll be dealing with those immediately.

However, | would suggest that we convene a meeting of the sub-
committee on agenda as quickly as possible to try to determine be-
yond the estimates what studies this committee may wish to engage
in.

When would the supplementaries be available? Immediately?

The Clerk: Right now. Supplementary estimates (B) have been
referred to the committee already. They're before the committee,
and the committee can start its study whenever it wants.

The Chair: All right. What is the deadline for reporting back to
the House on the supplementaries?

The Clerk: The supplementary estimates are referred to the
committee until three days before the last allotted day in the period,
or three days before the last sitting day in the period. The reason is
that it's dependent upon when the last allotted day is decided. Un-
fortunately, we don't know when that will be. That's the prerogative
of the government, which has not decided when that last day will
be.

When that last day is designated, three days before then, the or-
der of reference for the supplementary estimates will lapse. In the
event that it's not determined, the reason we have the other caveat
of three days before the last sitting day is in case the government
gets to within that being the last sitting day. There has to be a dead-
line that kicks in.

Suffice it to say that we don't actually know the deadline on that.
We know that the period ends on March 26. We know that at least
three sitting days before that date, it will lapse. It may lapse earlier

than that. The committee can, however, study the subject matter of
it under its general mandate under the Standing Orders.

I would suggest that in the calendar time that we're dealing with
now, we don't have a whole lot of time, frankly, to do this before
March 26th, as there are some break weeks coming up. The com-
mittee may want to take that into consideration when considering
its schedule of when it wants to do its business.

® (0950)

The Chair: I do have a suggestion, but I'll entertain discussion
first on when this committee and those members from the subcom-
mittee on agenda would like to meet. For example, would you like
to take the scheduled committee time next Tuesday to deal with the
subcommittee business, or would you like a prior meeting? My
suggestion is that we deal with subcommittee items at next Tues-
day's meeting and try to determine a bit of a work plan for the re-
mainder of this parliament.

Having said that, in practical terms, as Paul has pointed out,
we've got a fairly short timeline to deal with the supplementary es-
timates—particularly supplementary estimates (B). We'll also have
the mains and other supplementary estimates coming forward. With
the break weeks and the like, we'll probably have only four or five
weeks left after we deal with all of the other estimates and perhaps
government legislation. That's not a whole bunch of time. That's
why I'd like to suggest that we have a subcommittee meeting first
to try to determine what our priority items may be for studies that
we can entertain in the limited time we have before we adjourn for
the summer.

Mr. McCauley, please.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I mostly agree with that, but because we
have limited time and it takes awhile to get the ministers, I'm won-
dering if maybe we should go ahead and agree on the supplemen-
tary estimates meetings right now for the three ministers we have
votes for, so the chair can have time to corral them. If we wait until
next Tuesday to agree, that would take away today, tomorrow,
Monday and Tuesday before we can agree and then start trying to
contact Minister Duclos, Minister Murray and the others to appear
before us. My understanding is that we have the main estimates
barrelling down towards us very soon as well.

The Chair: Those are good points. As you know, Mr. McCauley,
and again—for the benefit of our new members—when ministers
are requested to appear before the committee, it is a request and we
try to accommodate their schedules as best as we can. If this com-
mittee wishes, particularly for the three ministers responsible for
these three votes, we will invite the respective ministers and ask
them to provide their timelines for when they might be able to ap-
pear before the committee. After we get the ministers' calendars,
we can schedule the times.
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I think it would be folly to try to establish meetings now if we
don't even know when the ministers are available to attend. We can
extend the invitation to those three ministers to appear before this
committee at their earliest opportunity, given the fact and letting
them know that we have some timelines and deadlines in place. We
can ask for their calendars and then we can schedule them appropri-
ately.

Mrs. Block.
Mrs. Kelly Block: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

When you consider the number of break weeks we have and
what the clerk has outlined on the last day it needs to be reported, |
would suggest that rather than leaving it open-ended by asking the
ministers when they are available, we instead outline for them that
we basically have three days for them to choose from. If we take
next Tuesday for a subcommittee meeting, these days would be
February 27, March 10 and March 12. T would suggest just being a
little more definitive by saying that these are the three days, and
hopefully they will be able to choose one of those days.

The Chair: Thank you.

Paul has informed me that we can certainly do that. We don't
have to put that in the form of a letter. We can just transmit this di-
rectly.

Again, our normal practice when ministers appear has been to
give them one hour to provide testimony. If it deals with supple-
mentary or main estimates, the normal procedure is that the minis-
ter appears for the first hour and her or his officials stay and contin-
ue to discuss the supplementary estimates or the mains for the sec-
ond hour. Given the fact, however, that we only have three days,
potentially, to get all of the three ministers here, in some cases we
may have to have two ministers appearing one hour apart at the
same meeting. That I think will be determined once we find out the
response from the respective ministers.

Mr. Weiler.
® (0955)

Mr. Patrick Weiler (West Vancouver—Sunshine Coast—Sea
to Sky Country, Lib.): Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Given that there are a number of new members on this commit-
tee, I was wondering if we might also be able to schedule a briefing
from the department—kind of a one-on-one—on estimates and
some of the other procedures.

The Chair: Just to be clear on this, Patrick, are you asking for a
separate briefing on supplementary estimates (B) for new members
who want to attend, as opposed to having officials appear before
this committee to discuss those estimates at the same time as the
minister?

Mr. Steven MacKinnon (Gatineau, Lib.): I'll let Patrick speak
to his own request, but I think a more general departmental briefing
would be available to members if that is their wish.

The Chair: We've had departmental briefings before. Quite
frankly, I'm not sure how those are arranged and organized. I guess
that through the clerks and the analysts we can invite the respective
officials to come forward to brief committee members on the sup-
plementary estimates (B), but L....

Mrs. Kelly Block: I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I don't think it's just a
briefing on the supplementary estimates (B), but a briefing on the
department and everything that goes along with being a member of
this committee and dealing with the operations and estimates.

The Chair: Was that your intent, Patrick?

Mr. Patrick Weiler: Yes.

The Chair: Okay. Thanks for the clarification.

We have done that before. The last time we did a briefing of that
sort was in 2016. We can certainly arrange that again for those
members who wish to attend.

Francis.

Mr. Francis Drouin: I can make a recommendation.

Perhaps rather than having the subcommittee meet this Tuesday,
and not knowing when ministers will show up in the next four or
five meetings, maybe we can request that briefing on the estimates
from Treasury Board on Tuesday, for example. We will be dealing
with estimates that are coming up. It would be good for members to
understand how the estimates process works. I have it on pretty
good authority that the Treasury Board could appear before this
committee this coming Tuesday. Knowing when the ministers will
appear, hopefully by next Tuesday or our next meeting, we can
choose a subcommittee date when they are not appearing—for one
hour, if that works.

The Chair: We have a couple of Kellys in this group, so I'll have
to go by surnames here.

Mr. McCauley.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: We have such a short time for this, I think
that if someone wants a briefing, they can approach the department
separately for a private briefing. Treasury Board has done that
many times outside of the committee.

No offence, but if the government had started committees and re-
called Parliament immediately, we would have had time for this.
But if we take Tuesday for the subcommittee, we're down to three
days for the supplementary estimates.
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I'm told we're back to the old system of estimates, which means
the main estimates have to be tabled within the next week and
deemed reported at the end of March. We have the supplementary
estimates (B) and the mains to go through, with potentially just
three or four dates to have ministers before us. To take any further
time away from the supplementary estimates (B) and the mains,
which, frankly, are the reason this committee exists, is folly, in my
view. | appreciate what you are saying, but we have such short
timelines. We need to set our dates so that we will actually start do-
ing our job and start looking at the estimates.

Again, the main estimates have to be tabled very shortly as well.
The Chair: If | may—

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Perhaps we can defer everything else to
the subcommittee, but at least confirm now that we will look at,
perhaps, the 27th, and March 10 and March 12, for the supplemen-
tary estimates (B).

The Chair: If I may, with respect to Patrick's suggestion about a
briefing, individual briefings can be arranged. Any members who
wish to have a departmental briefing can certainly make arrange-
ments through the clerk and the analyst, and have a fulsome discus-
sion. I would suggest, because of the short timelines in this particu-
lar case, maybe that is the best route to go.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Treasury Board has offered that every
time they have dropped the mains.

The Chair: I would suggest that, rather than try to organize a
full committee briefing, we leave it to the individual members to re-
quest one individually. Those services are certainly available. That
would free up a little more time.

Unfortunately, because of the way the break weeks fall, we are
dealing with a very truncated calendar.

I'm going back to Francis. You had suggested that for next Tues-
day's meeting we invite the president of the Treasury Board. Am I
correct?

® (1000)

Mr. Francis Drouin: For a departmental briefing by Treasury
Board...but I don't know if the president of the Treasury Board is
available. Of course, they have to appear within our next four or
five meetings. I just don't know who is available on that particular
day.

I don't know if we are going to have two hours of committee
business next Tuesday, so in the first hour we could discuss com-
mittee business, and have that briefing in the second hour. If it's just
going to be the subcommittee meeting anyway, we could invite oth-
er members who want to join us.

The Chair: The suggestion now—Ilet me try to encapsulate
this—is that next Tuesday, the first hour, from 8:45 to 9:45, would
be the subcommittee on agenda and procedure, and from 9:45 to
10:45 we would invite TBS departmental officials to come and pro-
vide a briefing to this committee. Are we in agreement on that?

Some hon. members: Agreed.
The Chair: All right.
Go ahead, Mrs. Block.

Mrs. Kelly Block: Just to clarify one more thing, in the second
hour we would invite any members who want to receive a briefing,
along with the subcommittee. Is that correct?

The Chair: Yes, it's been proposed that there be a full committee
meeting that second hour.

That being said, it's up to the committee members themselves
whether they want to participate in that briefing. It wouldn't be op-
tional; it would be a full meeting, as called by the chair.

Paul made a good point. As members would know, in camera
discussions can be called at any time. However, Treasury Board of-
ficials would probably appreciate knowing now whether the discus-
sions were going to be in camera or in public. I would ask for some
advice from this committee with regard to the briefing itself with
Treasury Board officials. Would you prefer that to be in camera or
in public?

Mr. Francis Drouin: I say it's really up to new members to de-
cide. In the past we've done it in camera, so we could ask any kind
of questions, so we wouldn't look unprofessional perhaps. I'll leave
it up to the committee to decide.

The Chair: Well, that's why I mentioned that the Treasury Board
officials would like to know now whether it would be in public or
in camera. [ would like to have a decision on that question before
we adjourn.

Do you want to make a suggestion, Francis? We'll see if that is—

Mr. Francis Drouin: From my previous experience, I would say
that in camera is better. There are going to be plenty of opportuni-
ties to find some embarrassing things, I'm sure. This is not one of
them. It's just a briefing.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Yes, if it's purely a briefing on process,
then that's a good idea.

The Chair: Mr. Green, I saw your hand up. I'm not sure if you
wanted to add to that.

Mr. Matthew Green: I'm referring back to my deferred mo-
tion—I probably can't speak back to it—but I'm always of the mind
that we should keep as many meetings as we can open and in pub-
lic. If we have questions that we need to ask, we ask them. If there
are questions that we don't know that we don't know, then we
should probably take those offline and have private briefings—as
I'm about to do in about 45 minutes.

The Chair: Just so you know and just so we're clear, what we're
asking Treasury Board officials to do is to come in to provide a ba-
sically holistic briefing on the Treasury Board itself and on the esti-
mates.
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Mr. Matthew Green: Mr. Chair, so that I'm clear, these proceed-
ings are recorded and then open to the public at such time. Is that
correct?

The Clerk: Public committee meetings are broadcast live.
They're being broadcast right now.

® (1005)

Mr. Matthew Green: Then they're archived. People could go to
that. My intention would be to go to my constituency and say, “This
is how it works”, and allow them to learn along with me. That's my

intention. The more open, recorded, public-facing opportunities to
do that.... I'd like to do that.

The Chair: Mr. Green is making a suggestion that when the
Treasury Board officials come to discuss the main and supplemen-
tary estimates that it be done in public. I'm looking for whether or
not there is concurrence by members.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: I would agree with Mr. Drouin. This
briefing is going to be a learning briefing. I agree with him. Esti-
mates are a difficult process to understand. I would hate to have
anyone not learn because they're afraid of asking a dumb question.

The Chair: There might be a silly question, for example.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: There will be enough of us asking dumb
questions, but I agree with Mr. Drouin. If it's purely a briefing and
nothing to do with the supplementary estimates (B) specifically,
then let's just keep it as is.

The Chair: We have two opposing views, which are very good
points each, respectfully, but I would like to make sure we have a
determination now, so we can inform Treasury Board. I'll just ask
the simple question. All of those in favour of having the Treasury
Board officials provide their testimony next Tuesday in camera?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: No, Chair, we're not saying “testimony””.
It's a briefing on the testimony process.

The Chair: When I say “testimony”, Kelly, when the officials
come in and give us information, that's testimony.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Thank you.
The Chair: All in favour of in camera?

(Motion agreed to [See Minutes of Proceedings))

The Chair: Duly noted, Mr. Green, thank you.

Mr. Matthew Green: Let the record show.... I should say this,
though. Out of all the things, Mr. Chair, if you will indulge me, I do
appreciate that the clerk did not announce the earlier vote count for
the vice-chair because that would have been embarrassing.

The Chair: We'll keep that our little secret.
Prior to next Tuesday's meeting, is it the will of this committee

then to invite the other three ministers to appear before the commit-
tee prior to...and we'll put in a deadline there?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: It has to be part of March. The mains
have to be out by the 28th. Therefore, they have to be deemed re-
ported by the end of March, which means—

The Chair: I'm going to ask Raphaélle.

Ms. Raphaélle Deraspe: This is a bit confusing because, with
the last Parliament, the House adopted different standing orders for
the main estimates. Now we're going back to the old model, if I can
call it that, and the main estimates have to be tabled on or before
March 1, and the committee has until May 31 to report them to the
House.

Mr. Kelly McCauley: Did I mention we've been sharing with
the PBO? Their understanding from Treasury Board is that it's the
end of March they're deemed reported.

Ms. Raphaélle Deraspe: Not for the main estimates.
Mr. Kelly McCauley: Are you sure?
Ms. Raphaélle Deraspe: Yes.

The Clerk: That may be a confusion. Possibly they mean the
supplementary estimates by March 26, or do you mean the main es-
timates?

Mr. Kelly McCauley: That's what they were saying, and I just
got a note from Jason Jacques.

The Clerk: [Inaudible—FEditor] standing order.

Ms. Raphaélle Deraspe: It's May 31, and actually Parliament
will vote on the main estimates at the end of June with the supply
bill.

The Chair: That is the normal timeline.

Mr. Francis Drouin: Priority would be on supplementary esti-
mates (B).

The Chair: Absolutely. We'll extend the invitations to the re-
spective ministers, colleagues, and will have a meeting of the sub-
committee on agenda and procedure next Tuesday morning at 8:45
for those members of the subcommittee. Then we will have testi-
mony, or a briefing, by Treasury Board officials on supplementary
estimates (B) from 9:45 a.m. to 10:45 a.m.

Mrs. Kelly Block: No, not on the supplementary estimates (B).

The Chair: I'm sorry, I mean on the estimates, and those will be
in camera.

Is there any other information for the benefit of the committee
that you would like to discuss?

Some hon. members: No.
The Chair: Seeing none, thank you all, colleagues.

The meeting is adjourned.










Published under the authority of the Speaker of
the House of Commons

SPEAKER’S PERMISSION

Publié en conformité de I’autorité
du Président de la Chambre des communes

PERMISSION DU PRESIDENT

The proceedings of the House of Commons and its commit-
tees are hereby made available to provide greater public ac-
cess. The parliamentary privilege of the House of Commons
to control the publication and broadcast of the proceedings of
the House of Commons and its committees is nonetheless re-
served. All copyrights therein are also reserved.

Reproduction of the proceedings of the House of Commons
and its committees, in whole or in part and in any medium,
is hereby permitted provided that the reproduction is accu-
rate and is not presented as official. This permission does not
extend to reproduction, distribution or use for commercial
purpose of financial gain. Reproduction or use outside this
permission or without authorization may be treated as copy-
right infringement in accordance with the Copyright Act. Au-
thorization may be obtained on written application to the Of-
fice of the Speaker of the House of Commons.

Reproduction in accordance with this permission does not
constitute publication under the authority of the House of
Commons. The absolute privilege that applies to the proceed-
ings of the House of Commons does not extend to these per-
mitted reproductions. Where a reproduction includes briefs
to a committee of the House of Commons, authorization for
reproduction may be required from the authors in accor-
dance with the Copyright Act.

Nothing in this permission abrogates or derogates from the
privileges, powers, immunities and rights of the House of
Commons and its committees. For greater certainty, this per-
mission does not affect the prohibition against impeaching or
questioning the proceedings of the House of Commons in
courts or otherwise. The House of Commons retains the right
and privilege to find users in contempt of Parliament if a re-
production or use is not in accordance with this permission.

Les délibérations de la Chambre des communes et de ses
comités sont mises a la disposition du public pour mieux le
renseigner. La Chambre conserve néanmoins son privilége
parlementaire de contréler la publication et la diffusion des
délibérations et elle posséde tous les droits d’auteur sur
celles-ci.

Il est permis de reproduire les délibérations de la Chambre
et de ses comités, en tout ou en partie, sur n’importe quel sup-
port, pourvu que la reproduction soit exacte et qu’elle ne soit
pas présentée comme version officielle. I1 n’est toutefois pas
permis de reproduire, de distribuer ou d’utiliser les délibéra-
tions a des fins commerciales visant la réalisation d'un profit
financier. Toute reproduction ou utilisation non permise ou
non formellement autorisée peut étre considérée comme une
violation du droit d’auteur aux termes de la Loi sur le droit
d’auteur. Une autorisation formelle peut étre obtenue sur
présentation d’une demande écrite au Bureau du Président
de la Chambre des communes.

La reproduction conforme a la présente permission ne con-
stitue pas une publication sous I’autorité de la Chambre. Le
privilége absolu qui s’applique aux délibérations de la Cham-
bre ne s’étend pas aux reproductions permises. Lorsqu’une
reproduction comprend des mémoires présentés a2 un comité
de la Chambre, il peut étre nécessaire d’obtenir de leurs au-
teurs autorisation de les reproduire, conformément a la Loi
sur le droit d’auteur.

La présente permission ne porte pas atteinte aux priviléges,
pouvoirs, immunités et droits de la Chambre et de ses
comités. Il est entendu que cette permission ne touche pas
Pinterdiction de contester ou de mettre en cause les délibéra-
tions de la Chambre devant les tribunaux ou autrement. La
Chambre conserve le droit et le privilége de déclarer I’utilisa-
teur coupable d’outrage au Parlement lorsque la reproduc-
tion ou I’utilisation n’est pas conforme a la présente permis-
sion.

Also available on the House of Commons website at the
following address: https://www.ourcommons.ca

Aussi disponible sur le site Web de la Chambre des
communes a I’adresse suivante :
https://www.noscommunes.ca



